Approved: April 19, 2005

Date

MINUTES OF THE HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Melvin Neufeld at 9:00 A.M. on March 23, 2005, in Room 514-S of the Capitol.

All members were present except:

Representative Sawyer- excused Representative Schwab- excused

Committee staff present:

J. G. Scott, Legislative Research Department Amy VanHouse, Legislative Research Department Reagan Cussimanio, Legislative Research Department Becky Krahl, Legislative Research Department Leah Robinson, Legislative Research Department Jim Wilson, Revisor of Statutes Mike Corrigan, Revisor of Statutes Nikki Feuerborn, Administrative Analyst Shirley Jepson, Committee Secretary

Conferees appearing before the committee:

Joe Fritton, Division of Facilities Management Representative Bill Otto Representative Forrest Knox Gwen Martin, Woodson County Commissioner

Others attending:

See attached list.

- Attachment 1 Budget Committee Report on SB 118
- Attachment 2 Budget Committee Report on **HB 2398**
- Attachment 3 Budget Committee Report on HB 2399
- Attachment 4 Testimony on SB 243 by Representative Bill Otto
- Attachment 5 Information on gas purchases by state employees

Discussion and Action on SB 118 - State use law; definitions.

Representative Pottorff, Chair of the General Government and Commerce Budget Committee, presented the Budget Committee report on **SB 118** and moved for the adoption of the Budget Committee report to recommend **SB 118** favorable for passage (Attachment 1). The motion was seconded by Representative Lane. Motion carried.

Discussion and Action on HB 2398 - Procedures for convening a negotiating committee for architectural, land surveying and engineering services for state capital improvement projects.

Representative Pottorff, Chair of the General Government and Commerce Budget Committee, presented the Budget Committee report on **HB 2398** and moved for the adoption of the Budget Committee report to recommend **HB 2398** favorable for passage (Attachment 2). The motion was seconded by Representative Lane. Motion carried.

Joe Fritton, Division of Facilities Management, addressed a question from the Committee with reference to the limits on total costs of a project as contained in the legislation. Mr. Fritton explained that if a project's total cost is over \$750,000, it would be referred to as a specific project and would be addressed by a negotiating committee. If the project cost is below \$750,000, two options are available to the state agency: (1) in-house design staff can be used to do the work; or (2) a qualified vendor can be chosen from a list of vendors approved and published by the State Building Advisory Commission.

Discussion and Action on HB 2399 - Authorizing certain fees for architectural and engineering services for state capital improvement projects, definitions.

CONTINUATION SHEET

MINUTES OF THE House Appropriations Committee at 9:00 A.M. on March 23, 2005 in Room 514-S of the Capitol.

Representative Pottorff, Chair of the General Government and Commerce Budget Committee, presented the Budget Committee report on **HB 2399** and moved for the adoption of the Budget Committee report to recommend **HB 2399** favorable for passage (Attachment 3). The motion was seconded by Representative Lane. Motion carried.

Joe Fritton, Division of Facilities Management, explained that **HB 2399** allows for the actual fees for in-house design work to be applied to the project rather than a percentage. The legislation still allows for the use of the private sector causing the in-house design services to still be competitive.

Briefing on SB 243 - Allowing construction and operation of private prisons.

Becky Krahl, Legislative Research Department, explained that **SB 243** would enact the Private Contract Prison Act. The bill would provide for the authorization, construction, license, and operation of a private prison by a private contractor under the oversight of the Secretary of Corrections. This bill would allow the Secretary to license, monitor, and regulate private contractors who construct, own or operate one or more private prisons in the state. The Secretary could suspend or revoke a license for failure to obtain or maintain accreditation or failure to comply with any requirements of this Act. The Department of Corrections (DOC) would not be obligated to house inmates at any private contract prison in the state. If the Department of Corrections does house inmates at a private contract prison, the private contractor would be allowed to provide correctional services at a cost of no more than 90 percent of the average DOC operating costs for the previous fiscal year costs for comparable services. The Secretary of Corrections would give first consideration to Kansas cities and counties when attempting to place any inmate classified as medium or higher custody in facilities other than correctional facilities owned and operated by the Department of Corrections including private contract prisons. The bill would require private prisons in the state to consult with the Secretary of Corrections during the design and construction of the prison. Other requirements for the private prison include:

- Seek, obtain and maintain accreditation by the American Correctional Association and the National Commission on Health Care.
- Abide by operations standards for correctional facilities adopted by the Secretary.
- Indemnify the state and the Secretary against any and all liability including but not limited to, any civil rights claims.
- Be responsible for dental, medical, and psychological services and diet, education and work programs at least equal to those services and programs provided by the Secretary at comparable state correctional facilities.
- Incarcerate all inmates assigned to the private contract prison by the Department.
- Would not be authorized or allowed to make a decision that affects the sentence imposed.
- Would not be authorized to make recommendations to the Kansas Parole Board
- Would not be authorized determine inmate eligibility for any form of release from a correctional facility including any private contract prison.
- Must have a plan to address all emergencies.
- State would not be required to assume any responsibility for the operation of the private contract prison.
- Must have the approval of the majority of qualified voters in the county.
- Department of Corrections would be required to hire monitoring and case management personnel with this cost being recovered from the private contractor.

It was noted that the Joint Committee on Corrections and Juvenile Justice has not supported private prisons.

Representative Bill Otto presented comments in support of **SB 243** and the economic impact for Woodson County (<u>Attachment 4</u>).

Representative Forrest Knox presented comments in support of SB 243.

Responding to Committee questions, Gwen Martin, Woodson County Commissioner, stated that Woodson County supports the legislation and have had discussion with several contractors who could be interested in the construction of a private prison. Ms. Martin indicated that no tax abatements would be given to a private

CONTINUATION SHEET

MINUTES OF THE House Appropriations Committee at 9:00 A.M. on March 23, 2005 in Room 514-S of the Capitol.

prison contractor who chose to build in Woodson County, all utilities are available for the construction and there is community support for a county-wide vote on the construction.

Concerns voiced by the Committee included:

- Type of inmate programs purposed by the private prison.
- Classification of the type of bed space to be provided at the private prison.
- Whether there would be a tax abatement for the private prison.
- Would the state realize 100% shift in the cost of an inmate housed in the private prison or would they still incur costs for the inmate.
- Would the proposed jobs be filled with local citizens.

Responding to a technical question concerning whether a state statute is required for private prison construction in Kansas, Jim Wilson, Revisor of Statutes, stated that he would research the question and report back to the Committee.

Chair Neufeld indicated that a hearing on SB 243 will held in the near future.

Representative Hutchins distributed information provided by Department of Transportation to a previous question asked during the presentation by Duane Goossen on March 8, 2005, concerning gas purchases at tribal stations by state employees (<u>Attachment 5</u>).

The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 a.m. The next meeting of the Committee will be held upon call of the Chair.

Melvin Neufeld, Chair